
Wednesday, 28 September 2022 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 6 October 2022, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 5 October 2022 - by notifying the Officer named on the report of 
the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE NOMINATION - THE PARISH CENTRE, 
ULVERSTON  

3 - 26 

 To consider the nomination to enter The Parish Centre, Ulverston onto the list of 
successful nominations of Assets of Community Value. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no Part II papers to be considered in this agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 6 October 2022 

Asset of Community Value Nomination - The Parish 
Centre, Ulverston 

 

Portfolio:   Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer 

Wards:  Ulverston West; 

Forward Plan: N/A 

Links to Council Plan Priorities:  

Working across boundaries – N/A 

Delivering a balanced community – Working with communities to reduce isolation and 

loneliness 

A fairer South Lakeland – N/A 

Addressing the climate emergency – N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Entry of the Parish Centre, Ulverston onto the list of successful nominations of 
Assets of Community Value. 

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that the Director of Customer and Commercial Services:- 

 Agrees that the Parish Centre as identified on the plan attached be entered 
onto South Lakeland District Council’s list of successful nominations as 
Assets of Community Value.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 A nomination to list the Parish Centre as an asset of community value was submitted 
by Ulverston Food Waste Project Ltd  (UFP Ltd) (Company Number 12711816) on 10 
August 2022. 

3.2 In accordance with s89(2)(b)(iii) of the Localism Act 2011, UFP Ltd are eligible to 
make a community nomination in respect of the asset and have a local connection. 

3.3 The Parish Centre is owned by the Parochial Church Council of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Mary with Holy Trinity Ulverston (PCC). The nomination states that the 
PCC are planning on selling the asset in order to raise capital for essential repairs to 
the Church.  

Page 3

Item No.1



3.4 The nomination states that the Parish Centre has always been a community building 
attached (not physically) to Ulverston Parish Church. Since 1985 the asset has been 
operating as a Parish Centre with rooms rented by local groups. 

3.5 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out those uses of land which may result in a 
property being considered as an asset of community value. They are uses that are 
non-ancillary and that further (or have recently furthered) either the social wellbeing 
or social interests of the local community. In the case of the Parish Centre, it appears 
that its main, non-ancillary use is that of a community centre. 

3.6 The nominating party, UFP Ltd are currently based at the Parish Centre. The 
nomination states that they offer a 7-days-a-week facility working to address food 
insecurities and offer help to local families and individuals suffering from food 
poverty. As well as being home to UFP Ltd, the nomination states that the Parish 
Centre is used weekly by Girl Guides, subsidised Music Lessons (FMC Juniors) and 
a local music group. The nomination states that due to the anticipated sale of the 
asset, no new bookings have recently been taken. However it is stated that in the 
recent past the asset has been used by a number of various community groups, with 
the nomination listing 30 different groups and events that have been held at the 
Parish Centre. 

3.7 The nomination states that communities gain social, volunteering and educational 
opportunities from their use of the asset, as well as improving mental and physical 
health. The nomination states that the closure of the Parish Centre would see local 
organisations, clubs and activities at risk of becoming homeless due to a lack of 
alternative premises in the local area. It is stated that the community would suffer if 
the services currently provided at the centre were no longer available. It states that 
the facilities that the asset offers contributes towards addressing the needs of 
disadvantaged members of the community and reaching vulnerable people by 
providing access to food for those in need, linking beneficiaries up with other support 
agencies and offering subsidised music lessons. It also states in the nomination that 
the asset’s facilities and the activities that it has, and could still offer, could be seen to 
improve the social wellbeing and interests of the local community. 

3.8 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land can be 
considered as an asset of community value if: 

a) There is a time in the recent past when the actual use of the building (that 
was not an ancillary use) furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the 
local community. 

b) It is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years where there 
could be a non-ancillary use of the asset that would further the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the local economy. 

3.9 The nomination states that it is anticipated the Parish Centre will be coming up for 
sale in the near future. The nominating party (UFP Ltd) have stated that if they are 
successful in their plan to purchase the building, it will enable them to hire out rooms, 
which will bring in an additional income stream. UFP Ltd have stated that they will 
apply to the Community Ownership Fund, launch a crowd funding appeal and apply 
to other local funding bodies in order to raise funds for the possible purchase of the 
asset. The nomination states that UFP Ltd are confident that they will be able to 
comfortably cover the running and maintenance costs of the building were they to 
take over the running of the asset.  

3.10 The Council has previously approved nominations of assets to be registered as 
assets of Community Value, with the most recent being the Old Schoolroom, Torver, 
which was added on 7 April 2022. 

Page 4



3.11 It is considered that the Parish Centre meets the criteria necessary to be accepted as 
an asset of community value. The evidence provided indicates that the current use of 
the property as a community hall, which is not an ancillary use of the property, 
furthers the social wellbeing and interests of the community who can use it to access 
vital services, an accessible meeting place for groups and a venue where events can 
held. Based on the information provided it is considered that it is realistic to think that 
the asset can continue to operate in a way that furthers the social wellbeing or 
interests of the local community. It is also clear that this nomination is in the spirit of 
the legislation that gives communities the right to nominate assets, particularly when 
taking into account the services delivered from the building and the current financial 
climate. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Parish Centre Ulverston – ACV Nomination Form 

2 Parish Centre Ulverston – ACV Location Plan 

3 Parish Centre Ulverston – ACV Assessment Form 

4 Parish Centre Ulverston – Owner’s Response  

 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The Council has notified the owner of the property of the nomination. The owner has 
responded, and stated that the PCC resolved to sell the Parish Centre on 28 March 
2022. They have stated that because of their partnership with UFP Ltd the PCC 
agreed to delay marketing of the property for 4 months to allow UFP Ltd time to 
assemble finances to purchase the building. Because of this, they have stated that 
adding the asset to the community asset register is unnecessary and unreasonable. 
This has been taken into account in the recommendation process; however, it is a 
requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that the Council must assess the 
nomination under the criteria mentioned in 3.8a and 3.8b. It is therefore considered 
that the nomination meets the criteria, regardless of any previous agreement 
between the PCC and UFP Ltd. The owner’s response can be viewed in full in 
Appendix 4. 

5.2 The assessment of the nomination was carried out by a Case Management Officer in 
liaison with the Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist. 

5.3 In line with the Cabinet decision on 20 March 2019, delegated authority is given to 
the Director of Customer and Commercial Services, in consultation with the 
Customer and Locality Services Portfolio Holder, to make the decision as to whether 
the nominated asset is added to the list. 

5.4 In accordance with Section 91 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council will send notice 
to all relevant parties of its decision in respect of the nomination. 

5.5 The District Councillors for the Ulverston West Ward have been notified of the 
nomination. Councillor Judy Fillmore has indicated that she is very much in favour of 
the nomination, and wholeheartedly endorses it. Councillor Jackie Drake, 
Westmorland and Furness Councillor for Ulverston Ward, has also registered her 
support of the nomination in the nomination form. 

5.6 Ulverston Town Council have been notified of the nomination. The Town Clerk has 
indicated that the Town Council are supportive of the nomination. 

Page 5



6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The alternative option is to decline the nomination. The officers who have assessed 
the nomination in this case feel that the criteria in the legislation have been met and 
that the listing is justified on the basis of the information received. Section 88 of the 
Localism Act states that it is a decision for the authority whether or not the criteria are 
met. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial or resources implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no human resources implications. 

Legal 

7.3.1 Under Section 87 of the Localism Act 2011 the Council must maintain a list of assets 
of community value. 

7.3.2 Section 88 of the Localism Act 2011 states that a building or other land is, or may be, 
an asset of community value if, in the opinion of the Authority: 

 The property is actually used, or was used in the recent past, for an 
activity that was not an ancillary use and which furthered the social 
wellbeing or interests of the local community; and 

 it is realistic to think that there can continue to be non-ancillary use of the 
property which will further (whether or not in the same way) the social 
wellbeing or social interests of the local community; or 

 it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there 
could be non-ancillary use of the property that would further (whether or 
not in the same way as before) the social wellbeing or social interests of 
the local community. 

On the basis of the evidence provided in the nomination in this case, officers have 
determined that the necessary criteria of section 88 Localism Act 2011 are met. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes 

7.5 A building or other land is an asset of community value if its main use has recently 
been or is presently used to further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community and could do so in the future. The Localism Act 2011 states that social 
interests include cultural, recreational and sporting interests. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 

 X   

Page 6



building space, materials 
or travel 

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets X    

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

X    

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness X    

 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 There are no foreseeable adverse impacts on any single equality group arising out of 
the legislation relating to Assets of Community Value. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P X 0  N  

Disability P X 0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P X 0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P X 0  N  

 

 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council fails to meet the 
statutory deadlines for 
responses and publication of 
lists 

The Council faces 
challenge on the way in 
which it addresses 
nominations for Assets of 
Community Value 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

The Council may be required to 
bear the burden of administering 
any initial appeals in respect of 
either nominations or 
compensation decisions 

The Council’s financial and 
other resources would be 
used to address any 
appeal 

Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Page 7



Risk Consequence Controls required 

Listed assets of community 
value not added to the local land 
charge register 

Reputational challenge Appropriate procedures 
put in place to achieve the 
Council’s obligations 

Contact Officers 

Tom Dugdale – Case Management Officer: 793269 t.dugdale@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Community Right to Bid: 
Nonstatutory advice for local 
authorities 

DCLG Website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Legal Services 09/09/2022 13/09/2022 

Section 151 Officer 13/09/2022 20/09/2022 

Monitoring Officer 13/09/2022 22/09/2022 

CMT N/A  

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 05/09/2022 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/14880/Community_Right_to_Bid_-_Non-statutory_advice_note_for_local_authorities.pdf


APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

South Lakeland District Council - Asset of 
Community Value Nomination Form 

 
Before completing this form please read the material at www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
Section A – Organisation 
 
Name of organisation 
 
 
 

Ulverston Food Project AKA Ulverston Food Waste Project 
currently a company limited by guarantee with CIO status 
pending (application no. 5196369). 

Address (including 
postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

Parish Centre, Church Walk, Ulverston, Cumbria, LA12 7EN 

Contact (name) 
 
 

 

Position in organisation 
 
 

Project Manager 

Address of contact 
(including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Telephone no. 
 
 

 

Email address 
 
 

 

 
Type of organisation 
 
Description Applying as: 

 
Registration no. of charity 
and/or company (if applicable) 

Neighbourhood forum (as defined 
by in Localism Act) 

  

Parish Council   
Charity Status pending Application no: 5196369 
Community interest group   
Unincorporated body   
Company limited by guarantee X 12711816 
Industrial and provident society   

Page 9

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

A1. Local Connection 

 
A2. Number of members registered to vote locally (unincorporated bodies only) 

 
A3. Distribution of surplus funds (certain types of organisations – see below) 

 
A4. Your organisations rules: Please send us the relevant type of document for your 
organisation and indicate which it is: 
 

 Please tick: 
Memorandum and Articles of Association (for a company) X 
Trust Deed (for a trust)  
Constitution and/or rules (for other organisations) X 

 
 
Section B – Information on the nomination 
 
What is being nominated 
 
 

The Parish Centre 

Name of the premises/land 
 
 

The Parish Centre 

Address (including postcode) 
 
 
 
 
 

Parish Centre, Church Walk, Ulverston, Cumbria, 
LA12 7EN 

 

Your organisation must have a local connection, which means that its activities are wholly or partially 
concerned with the administrative area of South Lakeland District Council or neighbouring authority. 
 
All of UFPs core activities are based in Ulverston. 

In the case of unincorporated bodies at least 21 of the members must be registered to vote locally. If they are 
registered to vote in a neighbouring local authority please indicate where. 

N/A 

If your organisation is an unincorporated body, a company limited by guarantee, or an industrial and 
provident society, its rules must provide that any surplus funds are not distributed to members. Surplus funds 
must be applied in part or whole for the benefit of the local area. If relevant, please confirm that this is the 
case. 

Yes as illustrated in our attached Mem Arts article 39. 

Page 10



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

B1. The nomination form must include a map, which clearly states the boundaries of the 
premises or land that you are nominating. Please include with the nomination form. 
 
B2. Owners and other with interests in the building or land: 
 
 Name(s) Address(es) 
Current 
occupants 
 
 
 
 
 

Ulverston Food 
Project 

Parish Centre, Church Walk, Ulverston, 
LA12 7EN 

Current or last 
known details of 
those owning the 
freehold of the 
land 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Parish Offices, Church Walk, Ulverston, 
LA12 7EN 

Current or last 
known details of 
those having a 
leasehold interest 
in the land 
 
 
 
 

  

 
B3. Why do you think the building or land is of community value? 
 
Does this use further the social 
well-being and social interest of 
the community? 
 
Include information on: 

• the current level of use 
and who uses it 

• any used by particular 
communities of interest 
or need 

 

Ulverston Parish Centre has always been a community 
building attached to Ulverston Parish Church. It was built in 
1854 as an Infants School, and was superseded by the 
current Church Walk School in 1896. It was then converted 
into a Working Mens Club in 1899, and continued in use also 
as a Youth Institute and Parish Centre. It was majorly 
remodelled in 1985, and has been operating as a Parish 
Centre ever since, with rooms rented by local groups. 
 
Due to the anticipated sale of the building, no new bookings 
are being taken by the PCC and as such the number of 
current Centre users has greatly reduced. 
Current use: 

• Ulverston Food Project - providing a 7 day a week, 
accessible, alternative to the Food Bank. Working to 
address food insecurity and the environmental 
destruction caused by our unsustainable food 
systems. We are supporting several Ukrainian 
refugees and their families amongst many other 
local families and individuals suffering from food 
poverty. We also host a weekly kids Art Club and a 
charity clothes shop. 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

• String Chickens – A local ukulele group who have 
been using the centre since the pandemic. – 
Supporting letter included. 

•  FMC Juniors – providing subsidised 
weekly music lessons – supporting letter included. 

• Girlguides – several units including Rainbows, 
Brownies and Guides still use the centre weekly - 
supporting letter included. 

 
Up until recent years the centre hosted: 

• Church Walk School - School plays, Christmas 
performances, Discos, School leaver ceremonies 

• Church use - Sunday School, Vision youth group, 
PCC meetings etc. 

• Lantern making workshops 
• Labour Party meetings 
• Civic Sundays 
• Furness Tradition, performances, workshops, 

lectures and craft workshops 
• Weight Watchers and Slimming World 
• Extinction Rebellion workshops 
• Film Showings 
• Scrapstore – eco crafting activities  
• Dance classes including Dance Active and Tap 

dancing 
• Knitting clubs and Weaving classes 
• Music gigs (small scale) 
• Drama group 
• Singing classes/workshops 
• Fitness classes 
• Jumble sales and Stork sales 
• Refugee support 
• Language classes (Albanian, Greek, French) 
• Rock School 
• Ulverston and District Flower club – Floral 

arrangement classes 
• Band rehearsals 
• Ulverston Outsiders Drama group – rehearsal space 
• Cooking demonstrations 
• Breastfeeding Festival speakers and workshops 
• Council meetings 
• Parenting courses including baby massage and Tiny 

Talk baby sign language classes and toddler groups. 
• Cumbria Wildlife Trust meetings  
• Communal Christmas dinners 
• Birthday Parties 

 
What do communities gain from 
their use of the asset and what 
would be the impact if it were 
lost? 
 
 
 
 
 

Social opportunities, volunteering opportunities, 
education/learning new skills, improved mental and 
physical health, signposting to support agencies and 
access to food. 
 
The closure of the Parish Centre would see local 
organisations/clubs/activities at risk of becoming 
homeless due lack of suitable alternative premises in 
the area. The community would suffer if the services 
they currently provide were no longer available. 

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

 
What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which 
the asset supports? 
 
Does the use of the asset do 
any of the following: 
 

• Reduce isolation 
• Address the needs of 

disadvantage members 
of the community 

• Reach vulnerable people 
• Support community 

cohesion and 
involvement 

• Enable communities to 
be self supporting 

• Increase access to 
positive activities 

 

 
The Parish Centre houses community groups and 
organisations which collectively address all points 
mentioned. 
 
The Parish Centre helps reduce isolation by providing 
a space flexible enough to host social events of all 
sizes. Private events such as children’s birthday parties 
have always been a highlight, as have communal 
Christmas dinners! Regular, weekly groups such as 
toddlers and youth clubs help parents and their 
children to make new friends and connections in the 
local area. Those who wish to gather to discuss/share 
a particular interest or hobby have also called the 
Centre home – e.g. knitting and other handicrafts.  
 
Providing a space for organisations to support 
vulnerable and disadvantaged members of our 
community is one of the jobs the Centre does best. 
Ulverston Food Project, currently based at the Parish 
Centre, provides access to food regardless of income 
and links beneficiaries up with other support agencies 
such as Action for children (supporting families), Mind 
(mental health charity) and works alongside local 
refugee action groups 
 
Community cohesion springs from town-wide activities 
such as lantern making workshops which encourage 
locals of all ages to get involved in a larger 
participatory experience. 
 
Having a place to gather, to learn, laugh, dance, play, 
sing and much more offers us all the opportunity to 
invite many positives into our lives, connect with others 
and become more self-supporting as a community. 
 

Does the community feel 
strongly that the asset should be 
retained as a community asset? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes, we have letters of support from current centre 
users and local residents to demonstrate this. See 
below: 
 
‘’Without the use of the Parish Rooms instrumental provision 
for Church Walk pupils would not happen. Since Covid there 
is no availability of rooms for us to use in the school.  
 
FMC juniors are passionate about providing children the 
opportunity to learn an orchestral instrument. Often cost is a 
huge barrier to learning, we provide lessons at an affordable 
rate and include free loan on instruments. 
 
All of this would stop completely without the Parish 
Rooms...no venue, no lessons. 
To date we have 30 children learning from Church Walk 
school.” 

 FMC Juniors 
 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

"The Parish Centre was a perfect venue for our Rainbows 
group offering two rooms for us to be able to spread out, 
learn and play. We were even able to invite other Rainbow 
groups to join us for collective gatherings. In the heart of the 
community, it provides a great, affordable, communal space 
for all." 

, Rainbows 
 
"The String Chickens ukulele group formed four years ago 
and met in the members' homes. When Covid happened we 
had to meet on zoom which kept us in touch and practising 
but was not the same at all. When we were allowed to 
cautiously meet up again, we felt that members' homes did 
not allow enough space. The Parish Centre came to the 
rescue with a large airy room where we could spread out, 
enjoy playing and singing, as well as chatting over a cup of 
tea. We are very grateful to have the use of the room at a 
reasonable rent and it has meant we can rehearse for public 
performances, our first being a fund raiser for Ukraine two 
weeks ago.’’ 

 
 
‘’I support the Parish Centre as an extremely important place 
for the community to access a wide range of events and 
support. 
Over the years the Centre has been important for me and my 
family. I have attended lectures, films, meetings, art 
sessions, weight management classes. More recently I have 
supported the Food Project as it seeks to ensure food isn't 
wasted.  
As a North Ward Councillor/Westmorland and Furness I 
have observed so many members of the community in dire 
need for food and clothing and have seen how the Food 
Project organisers and volunteers support members of our 
community in a supportive and unconditional way. 
The Parish Centre is an ideal venue and if this were to be 
lost would have a negative impact for people in these hard 
times. 
Our community need this space for support, education and 
entertainment. Where they can meet together. Without the 
Parish Centre the lack of community spaces in Ulverston 
would be a crucial issue.’’ 

 Local Councillor 
 
My connection with the Parish Centre goes back to the 
1950s when it was a much loved venue from Brownies and 
Guides. I spent the day of the World Cup in 1966 painting 
the Cellar walls with the Youth Club and have attended 
many community events there over the years. Cumbria 
Wildlife Talks, Plant Sales,  
Coffee Mornings, Public Consultations and Labour Party 
Meetings to name a few. 
This much loved building has been a solid community asset 
throughout my life and I feel strongly that it should remain so. 
It’s founding fathers, (they were probably all men), would 
turn in their graves if it were given over to private enterprise! 
Please do all you can to enable the Ulverston Food Project 
to secure the long term stewardship of the building. I think it 
would have been ideal if the Food Project was able to 
continue renting the building but if it has to be sold then the 

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Food Project folk are the very best people to take it on. They 
have my support and best wishes. 

 - Local resident 
 
‘’The Parish centre is a vital community asset. It is imperative 
that it remains within the hands of the people that use it and 
those who have become reliant upon it, especially after so 
many other local community buildings having been lost over 
the years. As the director of one of Ulverston’s biggest 
festivals I can confirm that it is becoming increasingly difficult 
to find available public spaces in which to meet, create, plan, 
perform and make positive things happen. The Parish 
provides the perfect place to do all of these things and more. 
This place has played host to language lessons, arts and 
crafts, music gigs, poetry, baby sensor classes, photography 
groups, girl guides, workshops of all kinds and much more. It 
attracts and welcomes people from all walks of life and offers 
a space to bring the community together, strengthen bonds 
and develop new skills.’’ 

 – local events organiser and UFP Trustee 
 
 
 
 
 

Could the asset realistically 
continue to be used for this or 
another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be 
achieved within the next five 
years)? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes, If the church were not in a position where they needed 
to raise a huge amount of capital for essential repairs to the 
Church, the Parish centre would remain an active asset to 
our community. 
 
There is still a need, now more than ever, for a well 
maintained, welcoming space which houses the many 
thriving elements of our community which enable local 
people to be more resilient. 
 
We are confident that given our current and projected cash 
flow, we will be able to comfortably cover the running and 
maintenance costs of the Centre. We are open every day, in 
some format, and receive a steady income from public 
donations. Our renovation plans include installation of solar 
panels which will help no end in our current climate! 
 
If we are successful in our plan to purchase the building it 
will enable us to hire out the spaces not exclusively used by 
the project which will also help bring in an additional income 
stream. As will a community cafe providing food available to 
purchase, hosting workshops and events. 
 
We intend to apply to the COF fund as soon as the next 
round opens (Oct/Nov), and have already been successful in 
our expression of interest which I will attach below just in 
case it is useful. 
 
We will apply to other local funding bodies alongside 
launching a crowdfunding appeal to help us obtain the match 
funding needed for the rest of the capital costs. The Town 
council have already expressed a positive interest and 
indicated that they may be able to support us with a financial 
contribution. We hope to be successful in securing some 

Page 15



APPENDIX 1 
 

Community Right to Bid – Nomination Form 
Version 2 
April 2016 

Community Infrastructure Levy funding and will pursue 
further support from Baywect. 
 

Section C – Submitting this nomination 
 
C1. Please include the following before submitting your application: 

• The rules of your organisation 
• A map of the nominated building or land 

 
 
C2. Signature: 

By signing your name (if submitting by post) or typing it (if submitting by email) you are confirming that the 
contents of this form are correct, to the best of your knowledge. 
 
C3. Where to send this form: 
 
By post to: Partnerships and Organisational Development Team, South Lakeland District 
Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, LA9 4DQ 
 
By email to: policy@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Page 16

mailto:policy@southlakeland.gov.uk


APPENDIX 2 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



APPENDIX 3 
 

Asset of Community Value Assessment – South Lakeland District Council 

 

Nominate By: Ulverston Food Project Ltd (UFP) 

Number of Nominations: 1 

Date of Submission: 10th August 2022 

Address of Nomination: Parish Centre, Church Walk, Ulverston LA12 7EN 

Date of DED: 6th October 2022 

 

Section One - Eligible Criteria 

Eligible Criteria YES NO Further Comments 

Is the nominating body eligible to 
nominate? 

 

 A company limited by guarantee. 
Certificate of Incorporation of a 
Private Limited Company illustrates 
that any surplus funds are not 
distributed to members. 

Does the nominating body have a 
connection to the nomination? 

 

 UFP run their operations from the 
asset being nominated. 

Is the nominated asset outside of one of 
the categories that cannot be assets of 
community value? 

   

 

Section Two – Determining Usage 

 YES NO Further Comments 

1.) Is there evidence of the use being 
described in the nomination? 

 

 The nomination states that 
Ulverston Parish Centre has always 
been a community building 
attached (not physically) to 
Ulverston Parish Church. Since 1985 
the asset has been operating as a 
Parish Centre with rooms rented by 
local groups. 

Is this the main, and non-ancillary, use 
of the land or premises? 

 

 The nomination states that the 
main, non-ancillary use of the asset 
is that of a community centre.  

Or has it been its use within the last 12 
months? 

 

  

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

2.) Does this use further the social well-
being and social interest of the 
community? 

  The nominating party, UFP are 
currently based at the Centre. It 
states that they offer a facility 
working to address food insecurities 
and offer help to local families and 
individuals suffering from food 
poverty. 

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 
 

What is the current level of use of the 
asset and who uses it? 

  The nomination states that due to 
the anticipated sale of the asset, no 
new bookings have recently been 
taken. However, as well as being 
used 7 days a week by UFP, the 
asset is used weekly by Girl Guides, 
weekly subsidised music lessons and 
a local music group. 
 
The nomination states that up until 
recent years the asset was used by a 
number of other community groups, 
with the nomination form listing 30 
different groups/event that have 
been held at the Centre. 

Is it used by particular communities of 
interest or need? 

 

 As stated above, the nomination 
states that the UFP offers a facility 
aimed at those in the community 
suffering from financial insecurities 
and food poverty.  

What do communities gain from their 
use of the asset and what would be the 
impact if it were lost? 

  The nomination states that 
communities gain social and 
volunteering opportunities, 
education/ learning new skills, 
improved mental and physical 
health, signposting to support 
agencies and access to food. 
 
It states that the closure of the 
Parish Centre would see local 
organisations/clubs/activities at risk 
of becoming homeless due to a lack 
of alternative premises in the area. 
It states that the community would 
suffer if the services currently 
provided were no longer available. 

 

  

Page 20



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 YES NO Further Comments 

3.) What is the nature of social well 
being and social interest which the 
asset particularly supports? 

   

Does the use of the asset do the  
following: 
 

 Reduce isolation 
 

 

 The nomination states that the 
Parish Centre helps to reduce 
isolation by providing a space 
flexible enough to host social events 
of all sizes. 

 Address the needs of 
disadvantage members of the 
community 

 

  The nomination states that 
providing a space for organisations 
to support vulnerable and 
disadvantaged members of the 
community is one of the jobs the 
Centre does best. An example of 
this is UFP, which provides access to 
food regardless of income and links 
beneficiaries up with other support 
agencies. 

 Reach vulnerable people 
 

  The nomination states that 
providing a space for organisations 
to support vulnerable and 
disadvantaged members of the 
community is one of the jobs the 
Centre does best. An example of 
this is UFP, which provides access to 
food regardless of income and links 
beneficiaries up with other support 
agencies. 

 Support community cohesion 
and involvement 

 

  The nomination states that 
community cohesion springs from 
town-wide activities such as lantern 
making workshops which encourage 
locals of all ages to get involved with 
larger participatory experiences. 

 Enable communities to be self 
supporting 

 

  The nomination states that having a 
place to gather, to learn, laugh, 
dance, play, sing and much more 
offer the opportunity to invite many 
positives into the local people’s 
lives, connect with others and 
become more self-supporting as a 
community. 

 Increase access to positive 
activities 

 

 The nomination states that having a 
place to gather, to learn, laugh, 
dance, play, sing and much more 

Page 21



APPENDIX 3 
 

offer the opportunity to invite many 
positives into the local people’s 
lives, connect with others and 
become more self-supporting as a 
community. 

 

4.) Does the community feel strongly that the 
asset should be retained as a community asset? 

The nomination has provided letter of support 
from current centre users and local residents to 
demonstrate the level of support from the 
community.  
 
The main messages coming for the letters of 
support is that the Centre offers a convenient 
and affordable space for community groups to 
meet, events to be held and support to be 
offered. It is felt that the facilities available at 
the Centre would be sorely missed if it were 
lost. 
 
The letters of support can be viewed in full in 
Appendix 1. 

 

5.) Could the asset realistically continue to be 
used for this or another qualifying community 
purpose (or could this be achieved within the 
next five years)? 

The nomination states that UFP are confident 
that given their current and projected cash 
flow, they will be able to comfortably cover the 
running and maintenance costs of the building. 
It states that they are open daily, and receive a 
steady income from public donations. 
 
The nomination states that if UFP are successful 
in their plan to purchase the building, it will 
enable them to hire out rooms which will bring 
in an additional income stream.  
 
The nomination states that UFP intend to apply 
to the next round of the Community Ownership 
Fund, and have already been successful in their 
expression of interest. It states that they will 
also apply to other local funding bodies 
alongside launching a crowdfunding appeal to 
help obtain the match funding needed for the 
remaining capital costs. It states that Ulverston 
Town Council have expressed a positive interest 
and indicated that they may be able to provide 
financial support, and it is hope that they may 
be successful in securing some Community 
Infrastructure Levy funding. 
 

 

Page 22



APPENDIX 3 
 

Section Four - Non-ancillary use of the building or other land. 

Officers are asked to consider the following questions, where appropriate, in relation to non-

ancillary usage: 

 Yes No Comments 

Has the building/land legal requirement 
for this usage changed significantly that 
the asset is not fit for purpose? 

   

Could the asset be made fit for purpose 
practically and within reasonable 
resource requirements and within 
timescales? 

  N/A 

 

  

Page 23



APPENDIX 3 
 

Recommendation and reasons for: 

 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Parish Centre be accepted as an asset of 
community value. 
 
Current (or recent) use of the asset 
The nomination states that due to the anticipated sale of the asset, no new bookings have 
recently been taken. However, as well as being used 7 days a week by UFP the asset is used 
weekly by Girl Guides, weekly subsidised music lessons and a local music group. The nomination 
states that up until recent years the asset was used by a number of other community groups, with 
the nomination form listing 30 different groups/event that have been held at the Centre. 
 
Legislation 
This states that an asset can be listed as a community asset if its principle use furthers (or has 
recently furthered) the community’s social well-being or social interests and is likely to do so in 
the future. There is evidence provided in the nomination that the asset is (or has in the recent 
past) used by various local groups and it could be said that it does further the community’s social 
well-being and interests. The legislation also requires that the asset is able to do so in the future. 
It is stated that UFP are confident that given their current and projected cash flow, they will be 
able to comfortably cover the running and maintenance costs of the building. It states that if UFP 
are successful in their plan to purchase the building, it will enable them to hire out rooms which 
will bring in an additional income stream. The nominating body have provided examples of 
various funding channels that they hope to access in order to purchase the building, which would 
result in the asset continuing to further the social wellbeing and interests of the community in the 
future. 
  
Previous additions to the community asset register 
The Council has previously approved four other nominations of similar assets to be registered as 
assets of community value, with the most recent being the Old School Room, Torver, which was 
added to the Community Asset Register on 7 April 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 24



APPENDIX 4 
 

Dear Mr Dugdale 
 
Your Ref ACV19_08_2022  

Thank you for your letter of 31st August 2022 inviting our comments on the nomination to 
include the Parish Centre on Church Walk Ulverston in the register of Assets of Community 
Value.  

We have worked closely with Ulverston Food Project (formerly Ulverston Food Waste 
Project) since they moved into our premises several years ago. We have signed a 
partnership agreement with them which commits both sides to an open and constructive 
partnership and provides for a subsidized rental charge.   

Notwithstanding this we were not made aware of their intention to make this nomination.  

The PCC resolved to sell the Parish Centre on 28th March 2022. The scale of urgent 
structural works needed to the church building itself amounting to around £1.5m mean we 
can no longer afford to own or maintain any unnecessary properties. As a consequence of 
our partnership agreement with the Food Project the PCC agreed to delay marketing the 
property for 4 months to allow the Project the time to assemble finance for them to purchase 
the building. As a result of other delays they have currently had a five month period to do 
this. The project has been kept informed of progress on selling the centre throughout and the 
inclusion of this building as a ACV will in effect be giving them an 11 month period before the 
building can be sold. This is significantly more than envisaged under the legislation and is 
clearly unreasonable. We have had no evidence from the Food Project of any progress they 
have made to date in assembling finance to purchase the building.  

Given the background above the PCC are of the view that the intentions of the Localism Act 
to allow community groups to assemble funding can be met within the agreement we already 
have with the Food Project and that inclusion in the list of assets of community value is 
unnecessary and unreasonable.  

Should your Council decide to designate the Parish Centre as an ACV please take this letter 
as notification of our intention to dispose. Presumably the interim and full moratorium periods 
will then run from the date it is entered on the list.   

 

Yours sincerely 

Maria Blakey 

 

Secretary to the Parochial Church Council 

Ulverston Parish Church 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Asset of Community Value Nomination - The Parish Centre, Ulverston
	Appendix 1_Parish Centre_Ulverston_ACV Nomination Form - Redacted
	Appendix 2_Parish Centre_Ulverston_ACV Location Plan
	Appendix 3_Parish Centre_Ulverston_ACV Assessment Form
	Appendix 4_Parish Centre_Ulverston_Owner's Response




